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To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State’s response, become an official amendment to this RFP.
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	Section Number
	Question Number
	Question & Answer

	General
	1. 
	Q.	Being an India based company; can we apply for this work?

A.	Any company may respond that meets the requirements as identified in the RFP.

	General
	2. 
	Q.	Please provide if the State requires a High Availability solution.

A.	The system should have a High Availability solution for peak processing timeframes. 

	General
	3. 
	Q.     Please provide us with a word copy of the RFP.

A.     A Word version of the RFP is available on our website at http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationList.aspx?QuoteGroupID=11.

	General
	4. 
	Q.     Where options are given in the RFP, which options are favored by the state in terms of meeting its goals?

A.     DOR requests options that enable implementation of a scanning/imaging system solution to facilitate more timely and automated data capture along with more efficient handling of paper returns and other documents to improve the department business processes in the areas of compliance, tax processing, and information technology. DOR is looking for options that offer the least cost and most efficient process to implement baseline functionality with the ability to build upon.  Also see RFP Section 3.1.

	General
	5. 
	Q.    Is a database of tax payer names and addresses available to validate the name and address information that appears on the primary tax form? 

A.     Both GenTax and ORION systems contain names and addresses.

	Schedule of Events
	6. 
	Q.	We have reviewed the RFP and have begun our evaluation. After my first review of the RFP I did not see a date for a site visit. Although the RFP is well written, it useful and customary to have the opportunity to visit the site to observe actual operations. This strengthens our understanding of the current process and future goals of the MT-DOR and enables us to provide State of Montana with a more complete and compelling proposal. Please advise if we can arrange for a visit to the MT-DOR’s processing facility.

A.	There will not be a site visit prior to the RFP closing date.  

	Schedule of Events
	7. 
	Q.     Can the state please provide an anticipated award/contract date?

A.     The State will move as quickly as possible to review and evaluate the responses. We cannot anticipate a firm date for contract award because it depends on the number of responses received, clarifications and negotiations that may be needed. 

	Schedule of Events
	8. 
	Q.     Please provide the anticipated dates for vendor selection and contract initiation.

A.     See response to question #7.

	1.3.1
	9. 
	Q.	Section 1.3.1 Review RFP. This section requires the offeror to promptly notify the procurement officer of any ‘unduly restrictive specifications’ or ‘add unnecessary cost’. We have two suggested changes to the RFP that we believe are unduly restrictive, they are:
1. Section 3.8 Project Timeline stipulates that Phase 1 – Ends January 2010. Taking this in combination with Section 1.1 Contract Term which indicates a contract starting date of December 1, 2009; this allows only 60 calendar days from Dec-1 to Jan-31 – a time period that includes at least 2 national holidays resulting in just 40 work days to complete all of the requirements of Phase 1. Based on our experience we strongly recommend the timeline be extended to allow for 75 workdays after the effective starting data of the contract.
2. Section 4.1.5 Local Presence details a requirement for a minimum of two FTEs – Project Manager and an implementation specialist to be onsite for the 19 month duration of the contract. Based on experience with similar projects, our firm believes that this provision adds unnecessarily to the cost of this project and recommends that this wording be modified to require a full time Project Manager but allowing the implementation specialist to be on site as required to meet the requirements of the contract.

A.	DOR appreciates your suggestions. DOR expects a cost effective and efficient solution to be offered. 
         1. Phase I timeframe is strongly suggested by DOR to ensure timely processing of incoming tax data enabling timely compliance activities. 
         2. Please see Section 4.1.5 This is the preferred and requested solution however on-site local presence may be negotiable upon contract award.

	1.5.1
	10. 
	Q.     Section 1.5.5; page 7. May we provide the electronic copy via secure email rather than on physical storage media?

A.     No. The State has no means for accepting a sealed proposal via email. Montana Procurement Act requires submissions to be sealed.

	1.5.1
	11. 
	Q.     Does DOR want a narrative response to each point in Appendix D? If yes, how do you want the responses formatted?

A.     A narrative response is not required for Appendix D. However, vendors may chose to offer one or to provide a “checklist” response under the appropriate column associated with each line or row item. 

	2.3.1
	12. 
	Q.	Section 2.3.1 Initial Classification of Proposals as Responsive or Nonresponsive states a proposal may be deemed nonresponsive if ‘the submitted price is found to be excessive or inadequate….’ Please clarify what pricing the State considers excessive or inadequate for this RFP.

A.	The citation noted is part of standard RFP language that includes examples of reasons why an offer may be rejected. This particular RFP does not include a budget estimate so no responses would be deemed nonresponsive based on budget amounts. 

	2.3.1
	13. 
	Q.     Page 8; 2.3.1 Initial Classification of Proposals as Responsive or Nonresponsive.  Can the state provide a web address or specifics on where we can locate the provisions of ARM.

A.     http://vendor.mt.gov/default.mcpx.

	2.3.2
	14. 
	Q.     Page 9; 2.3.2 Determination of Responsibility.  Can the state provide a web address or specifics on where we can locate the provisions of ARM 2.5.407?

A.     http://vendor.mt.gov/default.mcpx.

	3
	15. 
	Q.	Section 3, page 12, item:  Introduction
Will DOR award "partial awards" to various vendors to accomplish the "a la carte" solution described?

A.	DOR would prefer one vendor.

	3.0
	16. 
	Q.	Section 3.0 Introduction. Twice in the first paragraph the State refers to the project ‘budget’. This section acknowledges the vendor community has many options to choose from. Although an ‘a la carte’ proposal may provide the State with maximum flexibility, not all options will be compatible with one another. Therefore we ask that the State provide a better responses to the State if a budget or not-to-exceed value or range.

A.	The budget for this solution is unknown at this time.

	3.1
	17. 
	Q.	Please provide the details for the Disaster Recovery site and the network bandwidth between the Data center and DR location.

A.	Unclear how this pertains to the RFP as issued or to an imaging and scanning solution.

	3.1
	18. 
	Q.	I wanted to ask you if you are using Microsoft Sharepoint at the Department of Revenue?

A.	Yes.

	3.1
	19. 
	Q.	Section 3.1 Project Overview appears to suggest that all Tax Forms listed in Section 3.6 Volumes be ready for OCR/ICR processing in Phase 1 and that high-volume forms be made available for KFI processing in Phase 2. However, section 3.2.3 Data Capture seems to indicate that the progression will be from KFP to KFI to OCR/ICR. Please clarify the expectations for Phase 1 and Phase Data Capture.

A.	RFP Section 3.8, Phase I indicates OCR for forms MW3, RW3, W2, 1099.  RFP Section 3.6 identifies the majority of the documents currently processed by paper. DOR expects Phase I forms to be processed as OCR in the Phase I timeline. DOR expects to work with the vendor to identify as many forms as possible (as per the listing in Section 3.6) that can be scanned as OCR or KFI and prioritize them for each of the phases.

	3.1
	20. 
	Q.	3.1, p12, paragraph 3; Project Overview
How long are the paper documents stored?

A.	General timeline is five years.

	3.1
	21. 
	Q.	3.1, p12, paragraph 4; Project Overview
Does Viking Software have interface to allow other vendors to import images and associated recognition result to the Viking KFP system?

A.	Unknown; DOR does not currently utilize the Viking Software solution in this capacity. 

	3.1
	22. 
	Q.	3.1, p12, paragraph 4; Project Overview
The RFP states “the department also desires to enable Key From Image”. Is this feature from Viking Software?  Is it Image Entry?  Does it have an interface to allow import data from other vendors?

A.	Key From Image is an option of Viking Software although not currently utilized by DOR.  Interface question: unknown; DOR does not currently utilize the Viking Software solution in this capacity.

	3.1
	23. 
	Q.	3.1, p12, paragraph 7; Project Overview
The RFP states “Imaging of documents should also provide improved document disaster recovery.”  What kind of document disaster recovery is used right now? What kind of improvement is expected?

A.	Currently documents that are received by paper are stored by paper. Capturing an image of the paper allows better recovery of a document than paper in the event of a disaster. 

	3.2
	24. 
	Q.	Also may I request you to specify, if there are any hardware to be met under this requirement?

A.	Please see Appendix D.

	3.2
	25. 
	Q.	3.2 in general, 3.2.8 in specific Page 16
Project Workflow / System Requirements;  Centralized / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax Division
Is the planned / expected process centralized or is it done at remote locations?  This question is with respect to document review, document analysis, quality control and index correction.

A.	DOR currently does not have central or remote scanning process and does not have an expected process.  DOR expects the solution to provide the most cost effective and efficient process option or options.

	3.2
	26. 
	Q.	3.2 in general, 3.2.8 in specific Page 16
Project Workflow / System Requirements;  Centralized / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax Division
Is the planned / expected process centralized or is it done at remote locations?  This question is with respect to document review, document analysis, quality control, and index correction.

A.	Please see answer to #25.

	3.2
	27. 
	Q.     Section 3.2 Project Workflow/System Requirements provides a description of each of the DORs current workflow processes.
 a. For each of the steps listed under Mail Processing, Data Capture, and Remittance Processing, please provide the number of permanent staff members assigned to each task within each department and also provide the number of seasonal staff for each task. 

A. During regular processing season FTE are utilized; during peak or heavy paper times temp/seasonal staff are utilized along with FTE.
 Mail processing: FTE 4, temps @6-8; data capture: FTE 15, temps @40; remittance processing: FTE 11, temps @ 4; document prep (batch, number, etc.): FTE 4, temps @4.

	3.2.1
	28. 
	Q.	Please provide the breakup of users as per the following categories:
1. Scan Users
2. Workflow Users
3. Administrators
4. Indexing Users
5. Content Accessing Users
6. Public users or external users

A.	DOR does not have experience with scanning docs; estimated users based on our understanding of scanning/imaging: 
1. = 4-7
2. = 6-10
3. = 6-10
4. = 4-7
5. = 6-10
6. = unknown at this time.

	3.2.1
	29. 
	Q.	Could the State provide the number of FTE’s used for each task of the current process during peak tax season?

A.	Please see answer to #27.

	3.2.1
	30. 
	Q.     What is the anticipated number of users for this system?

A.     DOR estimates approximately 40 users within Phase I with an additional (approximate) 60 users in Phase II. DOR expects to work with selected vendor to identify users necessary to accomplish goals within each phase.

	3.2.2
	31. 
	Q.     Is the current OPEX® opening/extracting equipment handling your needs today?

A.     Yes, based on our experience. 

	3.2.2
	32. 
	Q.     What is your current extraction rate of your two current OPEX (50 & 51) extractors?

A.     DOR has one OPEX model 51 which is utilized mainly for clean mail (remittance with voucher only): peak day volume up to approx 2,500. DOR has one OPEX model 50 that is mainly utilized as a back-up and for peak day processing.

	3.2.2
	33. 
	Q.     How many Opex Model 51’s are there and what number of envelopes can be opened per hour on each unit?

A.     Please see answer to #32.

	3.2.2
	34. 
	Q.    Please provide the number of PO Boxes you currently have and how they sort your incoming mail. 

A.     12 main PO Boxes in central Helena, MT; sorted based on remittance only, individual income tax- refund and tax due, corporate tax, miscellaneous tax, general mail, along with a couple of non-tax form or payment related PO Boxes.  

	3.2.2
	35. 
	Q.    Do you have other sorts beyond the PO Boxes? If so, please list each sort. 

A.     Yes there are additional sorts depending upon the processing flow of the tax or account type.  These include: report with or without payment, specific form type (ex: individual income tax has 4 form types), refund request, prior year form, amended form.

	3.2.2
	36. 
	Q.    How many mail deliveries are received each day? At what time is the mail delivered? 

A.     US Post Office mail pickup is done by DOR staff in Helena; mail is picked up two times each morning.

	3.2.2
	37. 
	Q.	Is mail processing an optional or mandatory part of this project?

A.	DOR assumes the question is regarding mail processing hardware equipment: this is optional. 

	3.2.2
	38. 
	Q.     Page 14; 3.2.2 Mail Processing.  Is it the desire of the State that the vendor provide automation and methods of improvement to the mail processing environment?

A.     This is optional.

	3.2.2
	39. 
	Q.     Section 3.2.2 Mail Processing states that the DOR currently uses OPEX Model 51 for mail opening. 
a. How many OPEX Model 51s does the DOR have? 
b. What other mail opening/extraction equipment, if any, does the DOR use? 

A.     Please see answer to #32.

	3.2.3
	40. 
	Q.	Please provide the details for the ICR requirement:
1.  How many handwritten form will be scanned?
2.  How many forms require OCR?

A.	1. DOR estimates 25% - 30% of all paper returns are handwritten; 
2. As many as possible depending upon form design requirements and/or restrictions. At a minimum Phase I forms require OCR. 

	3.2.3
	41. 
	Q.	What will be the working hours for scanning of documents?

A.	General work day hours: 7:00 a.m. to 5 p.m.; peak times (heaviest in April, May) 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.

	3.2.3
	42. 
	Q.	Please provide the scan volume in the peak hours.

A.	DOR does not have experience with scanning docs; DOR estimates peak volume of tax documents to be scanned between 5,000 to 10,000 per day. 

	3.2.3
	43. 
	Q.	What is the maximum daily volume the State expects to be able to process in the new system?

A.	Please see answer to #42.

	3.2.3
	44. 
	Q.      Will this maximum daily volume be accomplished in 1 shift or 2 shifts?

A.     Two shifts.

	3.2.3
	45. 
	Q.     Can samples be provided for the documents that will be implemented in Phase 1?

A.     Please see RFP Section 3.6 for forms URL location.

	3.2.3
	46. 
	Q.     Can a listing of forms be provided that are expected to be completed in Phase 2?  We assume that it is the balance of the returns that are not in Phase 1 but just want to make sure.

A.     Please see RFP Section 3.6 for forms and volumes. DOR expectations for scanning depends upon form design requirements and/or restrictions.

	3.2.3
	47. 
	Q.     What is a typical workday in terms of start times and end times?

A.     Please see answer to #41.

	3.2.3
	48. 
	Q.     How many people are doing KFP now and what forms are being KFP now?

A.     Between regular processing season and peak season there are data capture staff; FTE 15, temps between 10 – 40.  All forms are KFP currently.

	3.2.3
	49. 
	Q.     What forms are being imaged now and on what equipment?

A.     No forms imaged currently in DOR; remittance imaging information can be found in RFP Section 3.2.4.

	3.2.3
	50. 
	Q.     What forms are KFI now?

A.     None.

	3.2.3
	51. 
	Q.     How many envelopes are there to be opened on a peak day?

A.     Manually and machine extraction combined: between 2,000 to 3,000.

	3.2.3
	52. 
	Q.	Section 3.2.3 Data Capture. We have a number of questions related to this section as follows:
1.  The text indicates that all major forms that ‘make sense’ will be included in the KFI requirement. Please specify the documents that will require KFI data capture.
2.  How many Key from Paper applications does MT-DOR have currently?
3.  How many keying screens per application does Montana have currently?

A.	1. DOR expects to work with the vendor to identify as many forms as possible (as per the listing in Section 3.6) that can be scanned as OCR or KFI and prioritize them for each of the phases.
2. All forms as listed in RFP Section 3.6 are KFP.
3. Number of keying screens are variable depending upon the forms. 

	3.2.3
	53. 
	Q.	3.2.3, page 14; Data Capture
Are there any scanners currently installed?  Desk top? Network?  If scanners are installed, what are the current scanners that are in place – make & model?

A.	There are a very small number of personal desktop scanners within DOR however they are not utilized to capture data, only an image. The make and model vary.

	3.2.3
	54. 
	Q.	3.2.3, p14, paragraph 1; Project Workflow/System Requirements
At phase 1, can we assume all the forms processed here will be for the current tax year or future tax year?

A.	Phase I forms will be for current tax year 2009; to be processed in calendar year 2010.

	3.2.3
	55. 
	Q.	3.2.3, p14, paragraph 2; Project Workflow/System Requirements
What is the current limitation of Viking Software?

A.	Limitations of Viking Software are unknown.

	3.2.3
	56. 
	Q.	3.2.3, page 14; Data Capture
Are there any scanners currently installed?  Desk top? Network?  If scanners are installed, what are the current scanners that are in place – make & model?

A.	Please see answer to #53.

	3.2.3
	57. 
	Q.     Under 3.2.3 Data Capture what is the difference between options 2 and 3?

A.     Option 2 = offer a separate OCR/KFI software and DOR continues to use existing Viking Software for KFP; Option 3 = upgrade existing Viking Software to enable OCR/KFI.

	3.2.3
	58. 
	Q.     Page 14; 3.2.3 Data Capture.  What difference does the state see between item 1 and item 4?  Isn’t this a replacement of the existing system?

A.     Option 1 = replace existing Viking Software; 
Option 4 = offer any other solution that may not be suggested in Section 3.2.3.

	3.2.3
	59. 
	Q.     Section 3.2.3 Data Capture provides a summary of the 3 phases. 
a. For Phase I: Is the requirement to process the MW3 with 1099 and W2 as well as the RW3 with 1099 for the current year only or for previous years also? 
b. If the requirement is to process for previous years, please list the previous years and expected volume by year. 
c. For Phases II and III, please also provide any requirements for processing previous year documents along with expected volumes. 

A.     a. Process current year; 
b. N/A; 
c. It is not required that previous year documents to be processed via scan/image.

	3.2.4
	60. 
	Q.     Please provide a list of all the equipment presently doing document and remittance processing.

A.     Equipment listed in RFP Sections 3.2.3, 3.2.4 and Appendix D.

	3.2.4
	61. 
	Q.	Section 3.2.4 Remittance Processing -> The desire is for the scanning/imaging solution to enable the export of images to GenTax and/or other system as needed
Please provide the flow (business and technical) diagram to represent current remittance process to understand the integration of the proposed system with the existing remittance solution to export images to Gen Tax or other system as needed.

A.	DOR does not currently have a technical flow diagram for remittance process. Software includes Image RPS with Visual FoxPro V8 software and FoxPro Reformatter.  Basic business process flow = all checks, money orders must have a voucher/coupon to process; voucher has OCR scanline with tax account information, has drop-out boxes for other necessary information to be able to apply the payment accurately; pass 1 – all checks and vouchers scanned; error correction takes place; pass 2 for micr encode and endorsement and bank deposit batch ticket and tape; data file transferred daily to network directory for nightly GenTax batch job pick-up; images stored on Image RPS system along with backup disk; currently 10 concurrent user licenses for web archive access to image server. 

	3.2.4
	62. 
	Q.	Can there be more details provided on remittance processing?

A.	Please see answer to #22.

	3.2.4
	63. 
	Q.	Section 3.2.4 Remittance Processing. Indicates that the existing system is image enabled and currently stores images on a jukebox. It appears that the minimum requirement would be enable export of the images to GenTax. If it is clear that this option is less expensive than implementing electronic deposit through Check21, wouldn’t a vendor be placing themselves at a cost disadvantage by proposing a Check21 solution? Or is the MT-DOR considering the overall cost savings possible by retiring the existing system in the analysis? Please clarify how MT-DOR will evaluate higher cost options that have off-setting cost reductions.

A.	The images could be exported to GenTax however they currently are not.  DOR is looking for a solution that includes electronic deposit.   It would be helpful to DOR if the cost proposal is clearly broken out by functionality “packages” or potential solutions.  A portion of a solution or all of a solution offered may be implemented if it is within the scope of time and money.

	3.2.4
	64. 
	Q.	Please clarify the following related to the potential for electronic remittance processing?
1. What is the preferred target date and phase for electronic remittance processing?
2. What bank(s) are involved?
3. Can forms MW3, RW3, W2, and 1099 have remittance?
4. Is there a requirement to have consolidated deposit reporting for check 21 and Montana’s current process?
5. Can the system provide strictly electronic deposit completely eliminating encoding?
6. Please provide estimated volumes for payment transactions as follows: that includes regular coupons (with OCR line) and check (s): 
· Single check with form
· Multiple checks with form
· Single coupons with OCR line and single check
· Single coupons with OCR line with multiple checks
· Check Only
· Others

A.	1. Phase 3; June 2011.
2. State bank contractor: US Bank.
3. There is a minimum expectancy of remittance with MW3 and RW3; no remittance with W2 or 1099.
4. This is not a requirement; reports would be needed but they could be separate.
5. Unsure as electronic deposit is not the current process.
6. Estimated volumes for 12 months: single check with form – none (assuming tax form, not a coupon); multi checks with form – none (assuming tax form, not a coupon); single coupons with single checks – 850,000; single coupons with multi checks – 1,000; checks only – none; others – none.

	3.2.4
	65. 
	Q.	3.2.4; Remittance Processing
What is the daily cutoff time of the receiving “bank” for the electronic remittance processing?

A.	3:00 p.m., Mountain Standard Time.

	3.2.4
	66. 
	Q.	3.2.4; Remittance Processing
Does the version of Wausau Financial Systems software, currently used by DOR, have the ability to transmit deposits via Check 21 requirements?

A.	Currently no. The NCR 7780 is not equipped with a rear camera.

	3.2.4
	67. 
	Q.	3.2.4 & 3.2.8 pages 14 & 16; Remittance Processing & Centralized / De-centralized Scanning
How are checks currently being processed at the remote location with respect to remittance processing?  Are the checks being sent to a central location paper or electronically?

A.	Payments are currently not processed at remote locations; all paper checks are sent to central location.

	3.2.4
	68. 
	Q.	3.2.4 & 3.6 Page 14 & 23
What kind of tax documents are processed at the remote locations?

A.	Currently no tax documents are processed at remote locations.  Some property assessment documents are processed at remote locations directly entering data into ORION system. 

	3.2.4
	69. 
	Q.	3.2.4; Remittance Processing
Which financial institutions do the DOR deposit checks?  Paper and / or electronically. Please list.

A.	State of Montana contracted bank: US Bank.

	3.2.4
	70. 
	Q.	3.2.4, p14, paragraph 1; Project Workflow/System Requirements
Does Wausau remittance software have an interface to allow other vendors to import images and associated data?

A.	Unknown; DOR does not currently utilize the Wausau remittance software in this capacity.

	3.2.4
	71. 
	Q.	3.2.4 p14, paragraph 1; Remittance Processing
What method of processing checks does the current Wausau Financial Services remittance software use - for example Check 21 or ACH?

A.	The current system does not do electronic deposit; also see answer to #61.

	3.2.4
	72. 
	Q.	3.2.4 p14, paragraph 1; Remittance Processing
What is the product name and version of the current Wausau Financial Services remittance software?

A.	Please see answer to #61.

	3.2.4
	73. 
	Q.	3.2.4 p14, paragraph 1; Remittance Processing
Is remittance processing ICR/OCR done by Wausau Software or the NCR 7780?

A.	NCR7780 is the hardware, Wausau Financial Systems Image RPS is the software; the question is not clear in meaning.

	3.2.4
	74. 
	Q.	3.2.4 p14, paragraph 1; Remittance Processing
What operating system do the local remittance servers run?

A.	Currently MS Server 2003.

	3.2.4
	75. 
	Q.	3.2.4 p14, paragraph 1; Remittance Processing
How are the image files stored on the local remittance server?  For example are they stored in a database, on the local file system, within the Wausau software, or …?

A.	Images are stored on a local MS SQL database. A backup disk of images is made both nightly and weekly. 

	3.2.4
	76. 
	Q.	3.2.4 p14, paragraph 1; Remittance Processing
Should all checks be processed using Check 21 or should eligible checks be processed using ARC?

A.	It is DOR’s understanding there is a need for both Check 21 and ARC; solution proposed should include both if being offered.

	3.2.4
	77. 
	Q.	3.2.4 p14, paragraph 1; Remittance Processing
Does the current NCR 7780 configuration support two sided scanning? Is it equipped with the “Image Module” feature?

A.	Currently no. The NCR 7780 is not equipped with a rear camera.

	3.2.4
	78. 
	Q.	3.2.4 p14, paragraph 1; Remittance Processing
Is the current NCR 7780 configuration equipped with any of the following “Reader Module” features: MICR Reader, OCR Reader, Code line display camera?  If so, which ones?

A.	MICR: Yes.  OCR: Yes. The code lines can be read in the main image only (there is no separate camera or reader for code lines). 

	3.2.4
	79. 
	Q.	3.2.4; Remittance Processing
What is the daily cutoff time of the receiving “bank” for the electronic remittance processing?

A.	Please see answer to #65.

	3.2.4
	80. 
	Q.     Page 14; 3.2.4 Remittance Processing.  Will the state want to perform any conversion of the images located on the local remittance jukebox to any new system proposed in order to continue to provide access?  Or will the state consider continuing to use the existing system will migrating to the new one?  If the state desires conversion to the new system, can an estimate of the volume of images be provided?  Are these images TIFF images?

A.     Yes, it is preferable to have the ability to convert images from the current system to a new system. DOR would prefer to continue using the system until migrating to the new system. Migration should be complete and not require concurrent system usage. Images are TIFF.  Please refer to RFP Section 3.6 for volume of checks. Image volume is unknown at this time. 

	3.2.5
	81. 
	Q.	What kind of database is preferred, Oracle or SQL Server? Does the State of Montana DOR have site licenses with Oracle and Microsoft for the OS?

A.	Please see Appendix D in RFP.

	3.2.5
	82. 
	Q.    Would you like the new solution to allow you to assign a particular tax type to particular keyers? 

A.     It is optional; but if it is possible it would be helpful to be able to assign particular tax types to particular keyers or group of keyers.    

	3.2.5
	83. 
	Q.     What type of requirements do you have for tracking documents that require deletion and ensuring that those documents are rescanned? 

A.     DOR does not have a specific requirement however there is a need to track a document through deletion and rescan ensuring the batch count reconciles to the document items/numbers.

	3.2.5
	84. 
	Q.     Do you expect the solution to process documents received via fax? 

A.     DOR does not have this expectation.

	3.2.5
	85. 
	Q.     Do you expect the solution to process email attachments? 

A.     DOR does not have this expectation.

	3.2.5
	86. 
	Q.	Section 3.2.5 Imaging/Document Management System. We have a number of questions related to this section as follows:
1. As an alternative can the GenTax system act as a repository for storing the image files so that another document management system would be redundant and not necessary?
1. Would access from other systems come through the GenTax system or directly to the document management system?  Would the “other” systems need their own interface to the document management system?  Please provide as much detail as necessary to provide a vision of the solution.
1. How many users will need access to images stored in the Document Management System after initial processing? Please advise the number in terms of total users and concurrent users.
1. How often will these users need to access images?
1. A Document Management System can also store documents generated in GenTax. If this feature is desired please advise the application used (i.e. MS Word) and how many documents are created each year.
1. A Document Management system can also store e-mail. If this feature is desired please advise the type of e-mail system use by the agency and would there be a need to incorporate incoming or outgoing e-mail messages into the Document Imaging system associated with a particular return?
1. On average, how many documents or pages are requested from the central records storage repository on an annual basis that would need to be imaged and stored in the document imaging system?
1. Please advise the period of time that documents/images in this repository must be maintained.
1. We assume that all the document and or index modification activities (append to a document, update / addition of index values and the separation of existing image documents) will occur while the document is still being processed; i.e. prior to the document being sent to the GenTax system and to the archive. Please advise MT-DOR have any requirements for document modification once the information and data are transferred to GenTax.
1. The statement “If correspondence scanning is included’ – suggests that it’s not required. Having this capability will add to the system cost, why would a vendor put his bid at a competitive disadvantage? If the State desires correspondence processing it should made a requirement. Please clarify.

A. 1. Yes, the GenTax system can be the repository for tax form and tax payment images. Based on current process, the ORION system would not be the repository for images.
2.  Based on the answer to question 1 (above) it is assumed there would be a need for an imaging/document management system available for images/documents associated to ORION (property assessment) along with and interface. 
3. Based on answers to questions 1 and 2 (above) the estimated users would be 60 with potential for all of them to be concurrent users.
4. Unknown.
5. Based on current practice, this feature is not required or necessary.
6. Based on current practice, this feature is not required or necessary.
7. Please see RFP Section 3.6, page 24.
8. Average storage time is 5 years.
9. DOR does not expect modifications to a form once loaded in GenTax.
10. This is not a requirement. If it is included in solution/offer, please identify a separate cost.

	3.2.5
	87. 
	Q.	3.2.5; Imaging / Document Management System
Does the State of Montana have a preferred / standard Document Management System?  If so, what is the product?

A.	There is not a preferred document management system however further information regarding state standards can be found at on-line locations as per RFP Section 2.6.

	3.2.5
	88. 
	Q.	3.2.5, p15, paragraph 1; Project Workflow/System Requirements
What are the other systems and other options here?

A.	ORION is currently used by the DOR. Other systems or other options include those possibilities which are presented as a solution and accepted by DOR. 

	3.2.5
	89. 
	Q.	3.2.5, p15, paragraph 2; Project Workflow/System Requirements
Who are the users for this document management systems?  How many of them? What is the peak number of concurrent users?

A.	Please see answer to #86.

	3.2.5
	90. 
	Q.	3.2.5, p15, paragraph 6; Project Workflow/System Requirements
The RFP states a nightly push of a flat file to a common location for GenTax retrieval.  What information is required in this flat file?  Does GenTax need image files? 
Who has the master copy of the data? If the new system pushes the data to GenTax; can users still be allowed to change data in the new system as well as GenTax?  What are the requirements to resolve data inconsistency?

A.	GenTax currently requires the data captured from forms and is able to accept an image file.  Assuming the image file is submitted to GenTax, then the master copy resides on GenTax.

	3.2.5
	91. 
	Q.	3.2.5, p15, paragraph 8; Project Workflow/System Requirements
What is the interface to GenTax for document retrieval, for example web service, DLL? Can an interface document be provided as part of these question responses?  What programming language is preferred?

A.	Currently no interface for document image retrieval exists and therefore no documentation. Assuming the image file is separate from GenTax, FAST and DOR will work with the vendor to design this interface using either Web service or DLL. 

	3.2.5
	92. 
	Q.	3.2.5, p15, paragraph 9; Project Workflow/System Requirements
If the new system also submits image files to GenTax, can the new system remove these image files? If not, who contains the master copy?

A.	Assuming the image file is submitted to GenTax, then the master copy resides on GenTax.

	3.2.5
	93. 
	Q.	3.2.5; Imaging / Document Management System
Does the State of Montana have a preferred / standard Document Management System?  If so, what is the product?

A.	There is not a preferred document management system however further information regarding state standards can be found at on-line locations as per RFP Section 2.6.

	3.2.5
	94. 
	Q.	How many concurrent users will need access to the Imaging/Document Management System specified in Section 3.2.5?

A.	Please see answer to #86.

	3.2.5
	95. 
	Q.     Page 15; Indicates “Vendor must provide an interface to GenTax for document retrieval.  GenTax will provide the call and provide the document’s DLN for retrieval.”  It is our understanding that GenTax has the ability to retrieve stored images, therefore what is the purpose for this requirement?  Please explain further this requirement.

A.     If the solution offered does not store images on GenTax there will be a need for a document retrieval solution. 

	3.2.5
	96. 
	Q.     What is the determining factor as to when images will be stored in GenTax and when they will be stored in a separate archive?

A.      Images could be stored on GenTax or on a separate system or both.  For tax forms, DOR will work with vendor and Fast Enterprises to implement solution.  Solutions offered should include options.

	3.2.6
	97. 
	Q.	Who is the preferred vendor for server hardware?  What is the preferred OS for the server?  What is the preferred hardware and OS specification for KFP workstations?

A.	Please see Appendix D in RFP.

	3.2.6
	98. 
	Q.	In order to determine if the State has server capacity to run the proposed system, we’ll need a list of available servers and specifications that are available.

A.	Vendor needs to identify for DOR the server hardware needed to support the proposed solution.  DOR will be responsible for providing said hardware.

	3.2.6
	99. 
	Q.     Please describe DOR’s existing hardware, particularly scanning equipment, including type, scan mode, resolution, daily duty cycle, interface, and ADF information.

A.     Please see Appendix D for existing hardware information. 

	3.2.6
	100. 
	Q.	3.2.6, p16, paragraph 1; Project Workflow/System Requirements
Does the five years requirement apply to all forms?

A.	Five years is the general requirement for the majority of forms.

	3.2.6
	101. 
	Q.	3.2.6, p16, paragraph 1; Project Workflow/System Requirements
How is the system backup used? What is the requirement to backup data, to tape or to common share drive?  At the state level, does IT backup the data to different secure location?

A.	Unknown; will depend upon solution offered. 

	3.2.6
	102. 
	Q.    Is DOR looking for only an image repository in lieu of the repository in GenTax?

A.     No. 

	3.2.7
	103. 
	Q.	3.2.7, p16, paragraph 1; Project Workflow/System Requirements
What is an estimated volume for the back scan documents annually?

A.	Please see RFP Section 3.6.

	3.2.7
	104. 
	Q.     Section 3.2.7; page 16. Is the DOR central records storage repository location in the same facility/location as the remittance processing department? The reason for this question is to determine if the same scanning equipment can be used to scan the current incoming tax documents and the documents stored in the central records storage repository.)

A.     Yes these processes are in the same location.

	3.2.7
	105. 
	Q.     Will the images scanned on an exception basis be loaded to GenTax? Or, will these images be maintained in separate system? If so, what type of access to the images is required, by whom and how many individuals?

A.     This will depend upon the form/document scanned; they may be utilized by different systems. DOR expects initial forms/documents to be utilized by GenTax. Please see answer #124 for the number of users.

	3.2.8
	106. 
	Q.	What is the SAN technology preferred iSCSI or Fibre Channel?  Who is the preferred vendor for SAN?

A.	If SAN is utilized: iSCSI technology; Dell Equallogic vendor.

	3.2.8
	107. 
	Q.	Section 3.2.8 Centralize/De-centralize Scanning and Property Tax Division
1. Only one site will be used for scanning and indexing for the initial rollout at Helena. Please confirm.
2. Please provide the scan volume for centralized site at Helena.
3. Please provide an estimate of the number of papers and the documents, scanned at centralized (Helena) station in a day require ICR, also provide if State has any handwritten documents to be scanned and capture the data.
4. Please confirm if the scope of current RFP includes only implementing only 1 centralized location at Helena.

A. 1. Yes; 
2. And 3., please see answer to #40 and RFP Section 3.6; 
4. Please see answer to #25 and RFP Section 3.2.8. 

	3.2.8
	108. 
	Q.	Section 3.2.8 Centralize/De-centralize Scanning and Property Tax Division->
For the first rollout, the vendor should expect to have scanners up and running in eight to ten locations throughout the state for tax forms and correspondence. The highest priority locations are listed below:
1.	Mitchell Building
2.	Liquor Warehouse
3.	Billings Field Tax Office
4.	Bozeman Field Tax Office
5.	Great Falls Field Tax Office
6.	Missoula Field Tax Office
7.	Hamilton Field Tax Office
8.	Lewistown Field Tax Office
Please confirm if the scope of this RFP includes only the provided 8 distributed sites for scanning and indexing. If the scope includes additional sites, then please provide the total count of these sites and scan volume for each site.

A.	Please see RFP Section 3.8 for timeline proposal and see answer to #25.

	3.2.8
	109. 
	Q.	1. What is the type of network connection (Internet or Intranet) and what is the connection bandwidth between local locations and central office?
2. Response guideline says: “Offeror must describe: 1.) DOR equipment (hardware and software) that will remain and be integrated into the proposed solution, 2.) DOR equipment rendered obsolete that will be replaced with new equipment…” Is there a complete description of the currently used equipment?

A.	1.  WAN with bandwidth between 384K and T1.  
2.  Vendor needs to identify for DOR the hardware/software needed to support the proposed solution.  DOR will be responsible for providing said hardware/software.

	3.2.8
	110. 
	Q.	Section 3.2.8 Centralized/De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax Division. We have a number of questions related to this section as follows:
1. Please specify the exact number of remote site locations to be included in Phase 3 of this proposal.
2. Does MT-DOR have specific requirements/constraints for the remote capture? Ex: Web (thin client) versus thick client, specific security for public network support, etc…  What are the highest daily volume of the main remote sites?  Please clarify.
3. Please provide the volumes of documents that will be scanned at each of the remote office sites in order to properly size the solution.
4. Please provide the FTE counts for those people involved in handling the paper documents today.  This would include mailroom, sorting, etc.
5. Do the de-centralized locations process remittance or are the remittance sent to a centralized location for processing/deposit?

A.	1. Please see answer #108; 
2. Currently DOR does not remote capture, therefore cannot fully answer this portion although thin client is preferred, daily volumes – please see RFP Section 3.6; 
3. Please see RFP Section 3.6; 
4. Assuming this question is de-centralized FTE, currently DOR does not remote capture, therefore cannot answer this portion; 
5. Please see answer #67.

	3.2.8
	111. 
	Q.	3.2.8, page 16; Centralized / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax
How many total locations are to be part of the install base?

A.	DOR currently does not have central or remote scanning process.  DOR expects the solution to provide the most cost effective and efficient process option or options and suggested timelines if necessary.

	3.2.8
	112. 
	Q.	3.2.8, page 16; Centralized / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax
What is the expected volume for the centrally located image scanner in PRO (Helena)?
 (Remote sites are estimated at approximately 100 documents per day)

A.	Please see RFP Section 3.6 Volumes.

	3.2.8
	113. 
	Q.	3.2.8, page 16; Centralized / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax
Are there any color requirements for capture?

A.	Please see Appendix D.

	3.2.8
	114. 
	Q.	3.2.8, page 16; Centralized / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax
Are all documents standard letter size 8.5 x 11 documents?

A.	All documents are not standard letter size; the higher percentage of paper tax forms are 8.5 X 11; the higher volume forms listed in 3.6 are generally 8.5 x 11; some tax forms are one-half this size and some tax forms are legal size. 

	3.2.8
	115. 
	Q.	3.2.8; Response Guideline
Is there a list of hardware and software descriptions including, make, model, SW versions and specifications available to assist the vendor in making the determination of what will remain and what will be integrated into the proposed solution or rendered obsolete?

A.	Vendor needs to identify for DOR the hardware/software needed to support the proposed solution.  DOR will be responsible for providing said hardware/software. Please also see Appendix D.

	3.2.8
	116. 
	Q.	3.2.8, p16, paragraph 2; Project Workflow/System Requirements
What kind of scanners are used in the remote locations?

A.	Please see answer to #53.

	3.2.8
	117. 
	Q.	3.2.8, p17, paragraph 2; Project Workflow/System Requirements
The RFP states “The estimated volume for each of these sites is approximately 100 documents per day.” What is the average pages per document?

A.	Three.

	3.2.8
	118. 
	Q.	3.2.8, page 16; Centralized / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax
How many total locations are to be part of the install base?

A.	Please see answer to #111.

	3.2.8
	119. 
	Q.	3.2.8; Central / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax Division
On the URL link for the list of office locations, there are 56 sites.  Is it a requirement for scanning at all locations?  If not, how many locations are required?

A.	Please see answer to #111.

	3.2.8
	120. 
	Q.	3.2.8; Central / De-centralized Scanning and Property Tax Division
On the URL link for the list of office locations, there are 56 sites.  How many sites currently have acceptable scanning capabilities?

A.	Please see answer to #111.

	3.2.8
	121. 
	Q.	Will the satellite offices mentioned in Section 3.2.8 be connected to the WAN and have access to the servers in Helena?  If not, what would be the preferred communication method to transfer images between satellite offices and the main location?

A.	Yes.

	3.2.8
	122. 
	Q.     Section 3.2.8 page 17, is there a list of equipment at each of the sites?

A.     Vendor needs to identify for DOR the hardware/software needed to support the proposed solution.  DOR will be responsible for providing said hardware/software.  Also see Appendix D.

	3.3.2
	123. 
	Q.     During the project phase, we typically work onsite for much of the Detail Design phase of the project then perform development offsite and come back onsite for testing, training and implementation. It is acceptable that development work be performed remotely? 

A.     Please see RFP Section 4.1.5. This is the preferred and requested solution however on-site local presence may be negotiable upon contract award.

	3.3.3
	124. 
	Q.     Is the system to be designed with 140 concurrent users with sub-second response time and full redundancy? This requirement contributes significantly to the overall cost of the system.

A.     DOR estimates approximately 40 users within Phase I with an additional (approximate) 60 users in Phase II. There is an expectation some of these users will require concurrent use. DOR expects to work with selected vendor to identify users necessary along with concurrent user needs to accomplish goals within each phase.

	3.3.3
	125. 
	Q.	Section 3.3.3 System Analysis and Design. Please confirm that the requirements of this section are required by the contractor as the first steps after receipt of the contract.

A.	System Usage Analysis and Technical Designs should be included in the proposal. Requirements validation can be completed at a later date. 

	3.3.4
	126. 
	Q.     3.3.4 Installation, Configuration and Implementation of the Proposed Hardware. Page 19.  The vendor must demonstrate the hardware so that DOR staff can review and approve it. 
Is DOR asking to have hardware demonstrated in advance of contract award? Can the demonstration happen at a reference site?

A.     It is expected actual hardware will be demonstrated and accepted after the contract is awarded. The proposal should include proven, reliable hardware in the technical design.

	3.3.6.2
	127. 
	Q.	3.3.6.2; Documentation Requirements
Can more specifics be provided on what is expected in a Technical Manual and Staff Manual as opposed to the other manuals listed?

A.	DOR will work closely with the chosen vendor to complete all required documentation. Style and Content specifications will be provided at that time. 

	3.3.6.2
	128. 
	Q.	3.3.6.2 & 3.3.9; Documentation Requirements
Do you require documentation and training products to be delivered in hard copy?

A.	One hard copy and one soft copy.

	3.3.6.2
	129. 
	Q.	3.3.6.2 & 3.3.9; Documentation Requirements
What file format do you expect documentation (manuals) and training products.

A.	Documentation should be provided in a commonly used format (such as a word document or a pdf) and will become property of DOR. All documentation should be editable by DOR. 

	3.3.6.2
	130. 
	Q.	3.3.6.2; Documentation Requirements
Can more specifics be provided on what is expected in a Technical Manual and Staff Manual as opposed to the other manuals listed?

A.	DOR will work closely with the chosen vendor to complete all required documentation. Style and Content specifications will be provided at that time.

	3.3.6.2
	131. 
	Q.	3.3.6.2 & 3.3.9; Documentation Requirements
Do you require documentation and training products to be delivered in hard copy?

A.	Please see answer to #128.

	3.3.6.2
	132. 
	Q.	3.3.6.2 & 3.3.9; Documentation Requirements
What file format does the DOR expect documentation (manuals) and training products.

A.	Please see answer to #129.

	3.3.7
	133. 
	Q.	Section 3.3.7 Interfaces
Please confirm if the tax processing and the property tax systems provide APIs to implement the required integration with the proposed system

A.	DOR will work with vendor to design the APIs; DOR is responsible to build the required APIs.  

	3.3.7
	134. 
	Q.	Section 3.3.7 Interfaces. We have a number of questions related to this section as follows:
1. The complexity of image and data interfaces impact the cost to deliver the solution to the State. If the State cannot provide this information for us to use in preparation of our proposal we will have to provide this services on a Time and Material (T&M) basis. Can the State provide the interface specification prior with it’s response to these questions? If not, is a T&M base response satisfactory?
2. What other types of integration/interfaces are need? i.e. table lookup or table down load, validations with existing systems

A. 1. DOR does not currently have a document image interface and therefore cannot provide specs. Response should provide a solution that is cost effective and efficient. Provide options or solutions you feel best fit RFP response. 
2. DOR does not know what other types of integration/interfaces are needed at this time; please provide options or solutions you feel best fit RFP response.          

	3.3.9
	135. 
	Q.	3.3.9 Training and Personnel.
Can the state provide more detail re Personnel per following table:
	Process Description
	Permanent Annual FTEs
	Temporary Labor Hours
	Total Annual Cost ($)

	Mailroom & opening
	
	
	

	Document prep
	
	
	

	Data entry
	
	
	

	Remittance
	
	
	



A.	Please see answer to #27.

	3.5
	136. 
	Q.     Final acceptance is required in order to complete this contract and to verify that the proposed solution has met the requirements and needs set forth in this RFP. 
The State defines Final Acceptance and the start of the warranty period of the completed DOR system solution (all phases) as the State’s written acknowledgement that:…
Is it DOR’s intention that the Warranty Period will not begin until approximately 90 days after Phase 3 implementation? Or is the Warranty Period to start after completion of each individual phase for those deliverables?

A.     DOR’s expectation is to begin warranty period based on RFP solution response and finalized contract parameters.

	3.6
	137. 
	Q.	Please provide the average size (in KB’s) of the document to be scanned.

A.	At medium resolution, approximately 80KB.

	3.6
	138. 
	Q.     What is the total number of images captured and pages scanned each year? What is the peak day processing volume in terms of pages scanned and images created?

A.     Please see answer to #42.

	3.6
	139. 
	Q.	Section 3.6 Volumes. We have a number of questions related to this section as follows:
1. On page 24 the RFP describes back-file retrievals as 200 per day at 25 pages each. This equals 5,000 pages per day or 50,000 pages per year – about 11% of the total. Is this number accurate?
2. With reference to tables of volume, page 15, please provide volume peaks for a day, week and month in 2008.
3. Please provide 2008 Monthly volume, all forms, or an approximation of each form in the total mix in 2008 by month
4. The last line of the Volume table indicates that there will be up to 10 undefined new forms. The complexity and number of paged of each additional form will affect the cost to deliver this requirement.  If the State cannot provide this information for us to use in preparation of our proposal we will have to provide this services on a Time and Material (T&M) basis. Can the State provide the interface specification prior with it’s response to these questions? If not, is a T&M base response satisfactory?

A.	1. This is an estimated average per day volume;
2. These volumes are estimated averages of paper forms received in mail: 
a) Individual tax forms, peak: day – 16,000; week – 40,000; month – 75,000; non-peak: day – 150; week – 1,500; month – 5,000
b) corporate tax forms, peak: day – 8,000; week – 18,000; month – 55,000; non-peak: day – 50; week – 650; month – 1,750
c) Reconciliation tax forms, peak: day – 150,000; week – 350,000; month – 500,000; non-peak: day – 25; week – 75; month – 250
d) Misc. and Liquor forms, peak: day – 175; week – 1,500; month – 5,500; non-peak: day – 20; week – 100; month 500
e) Property tax forms: to be determined
f) Payments only, peak: day – 7,500; week – 30,000; month 100,000; non-peak: day – 500; week – 5,000; month – 17,500
3. Please see answer to #2 above; this provides an average of peak time and non-peak times within a calendar year.
4. Please see answer #134.

	3.6
	140. 
	Q.	3.6 – page 23; Volumes; How many versions of each form are there?  Please list by form as in RFP section 3.6.

A.	Forms listed in RFP Section 3.6 are broken out by form type with few exceptions.

	3.6
	141. 
	Q.	3.6, Page 23 & 24; Volumes
How many (as a percent) of the forms are filled out as handwritten?

A.	Approximately 20% to 30%.

	3.6
	142. 
	Q.	3.6, p24, paragraph 2; Volumes
Where does the back scanning of requested documents take place, a centralized location or remote locations?

A.	DOR expects this to occur centrally.

	3.6
	143. 
	Q.	3.6 – page 23; Volumes
How many versions of each form are there?  Please list by form as in RFP section 3.6.

A.	Please see answer #140.

	3.6
	144. 
	Q.     If we take the volumes of paper processed on pages 23 and 24 and compute a total volume for the year, it is over 9,000,000 pieces of paper a year. Is this right? You state the storage space should be calculated for a 20% growth rate a year. Does this mean that the volume of paper to be scanned per year will also grow at the rate of 20% a year?

A.     DOR expects the volumes listed in RFP Section 3.6; DOR expects to continue to increase electronic filing and paying therefore the volume of paper will decrease over time.

	3.6
	145. 
	Q.    Section 3.6; page 23. We appreciate your annual volumes in section 3.6. During your peak processing period, what is your average and peak day volumes?

A.    Please see answer to #139.

	3.6
	146. 
	Q.    Section 3.6; page 23. Will you be using GenTax for archive purposes, and does it include retention and purging capabilities?

A.    If GenTax is used for archive purposes it will include retention and purging.

	3.6
	147. 
	Q.     Section 3.6 Volumes lists page volumes for 2008 paper returns processed. 
a. Please list the number of form variations of each form type we can expect. For example, in addition to the paper forms generated by the State and electronic form submissions does the state accept forms from vendors? 
b. If so, how many vendor variations of forms are submitted to the State? 
c. This section also states that the DOR had an estimated Remittance Transaction Volume of 850,000 in 2008. 
1. Does this mean that the DOR received 850,000 checks plus coupons/vouchers for a total of 1.7 million images or was the total image count including checks and coupons 850,000? 

A.     a. DOR does accept pre-approved (by DOR) forms from vendors; 
b. DOR estimates approximately 20 vendors; 
c. 850,000 is the estimated volume of checks only, therefore checks and coupons would be estimated at 1.7 million total.

	3.6
	148. 
	Q.     Section 3.6 Volumes lists your Paper Tax Returns Processed in 2008.
Please provide your best estimates of a breakdown between hand printed and machine printed tax documents for each category. 

A.     All categories of forms listed equal approximately 20 – 30% handwritten and 70 – 80% machine printed.

	3.8
	149. 
	Q.     How many different tax forms will be converted by the end of the contract?

A.     DOR does not have experience with scanning docs; DOR would like to have approximately 25 tax forms for OCR and approximately 25 tax forms key from image; offer to provide response based on best practice and experience.

	3.8
	150. 
	Q.	In Section 3.8 it mentions that Phase 1 will be completed in January 2010.
a.       Can the time line be extended 30 days if necessary?
 b.      If server hardware will be need, can the State purchase, configure, and implement all necessary servers required for the new system within 30 days of contract award?

A.	a. Please see answer to #9; 
b. Barring circumstances beyond MDOR’s control, yes.

	3.8
	151. 
	Q.     Section 3.8; pages 24-25. What is your intended start timeframes for Phases 1-3.

A.     Phase I would begin upon contract award and negotiated start date; phase 2 and 3 would begin as negotiated in contract.

	3.8
	152. 
	Q.     The following is a proposed implementation plan and milestone list that meets the timeframes and business objectives of DOR. It is assumed rollouts will be contained within the phases. This plan is provided as a guide to assist each vendor in structuring their own individual implementation plan. The proposed plan should be highly detailed and include time for testing of each implementation item. 
Phase 1 – Ends January 2010
If the January 2010 date is only provided as a guide, when is the latest Phase 1 may be implemented? If due to delayed contract award, DOR processing deadlines, etc., make the suggested Phase 1 deliverables unrealistic, is it possible to reorder the phases and associated deliverables?

A.     Please see answer to #9 and #151.

	3.8
	153. 
	Q.     Section 3.8, Phase 2, Page 25
Implement and install remittance solution with electronic deposit capability.
Question: When implementing Check 21, what are the clearing bank(s)?

A.    State contract bank: US Bank.

	4.1.5
	154. 
	Q.     4.1.5 Local Presence.  A local project presence maintained in Helena, Montana is required for the duration of the contract. Page 26
Is the requirement to have an individual reside in Helena during the project or to have a presence for meetings, requirements definition, during implementation, etc.?

A.      Please see answer to #123.

	4.1.5
	155. 
	Q.     Section 4.1.5 Local Presence states that a local project presence is required in Helena for the duration of the contract. Is part-time local presence acceptable? 
PaperFree Corporation 440 South Melrose Drive Suite #130 Vista, California 92081 (888) 726-7730 
For example, if the local resources were available 20 hours a week or local every other week, would these variations meet the requirement? 

A.      Please see answer to #123.

	4.5
	156. 
	Q.	In Section 4.5 a local presence is required for the duration of the contract which should include a Project Manager and Project Implementation Specialist.  This contract is expected to last approximately 19 months.  Is the State open to have key personnel on-site just during the key implementation periods of the contract?

A.	Please see answer to #123.

	5.0
	157. 
	Q.	Is there any specific budget set aside for this work?
A.	The budget for this solution is unknown at this time.

	5.0
	158. 
	Q.     Section 5.0 page 28 states that the state reserves the right to do maintenance in house. What kind of maintenance is being considered to be done in house?

A.     None is being considered at this time; however DOR reserves the right to do maintenance in-house.

	5.1
	159. 
	Q.     Is the vendor required to include pricing information on workstation hardware or can the vendor opt to provide workstation hardware requirements only and allow the DOR to purchase the hardware through their internal purchasing channels? 

A.     Vendor needs to identify for DOR the workstation hardware needed to support the proposed solution.  DOR will be responsible for providing said hardware.

	5.1
	160. 
	Q.     Should the Required Pricing Information be separated by phase, or should the Pricing Information include the summation of all three phases?

A.     The budget for this solution is unknown at this time. It would be helpful to have the pricing information separated by phase.

	5.1
	161. 
	Q.     Is the DOR looking for a specific line item in the Cost Proposal for backfilling of existing documents?

A.     If the solution offered includes “backfilling of existing documents” please include pricing information as a specific line item.

	Appendix A
	162. 
	Q.     ALTERATION OF SOLICITATION DOCUMENT
The 1st sentence indicates that if there are any differences between the solicitation and our response, the terms in the solicitation shall govern.  If that is the case, how do we indicate that our response is based on any changes we made to the solicitation (subject to negotiation)?

A.     It is the State’s option to accept changes proposed or not. If the State accepts changes, than that will be acknowledged in formal addenda that take precedence over the original RFP.

	Appendix B
	163. 
	Q.     On page 39 payment milestones what is meant by Warranty-Holdback is tendered over 12 months?

A.     RFP Section 14.2 is provided as an example; once warranty period begins payments would be made quarterly over a 12 month period.

	Appendix B
	164. 
	Q.     Section 18. CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENTS, Page 40
It indicates that the State may terminate the contract for one or more poor performance assessments.  How do they define a poor performance assessment?

A.     To be negotiated and identified at contract award.

	Appendix D
	165. 
	Q.	Is the DOR looking for more than simply a check mark in the appropriate column indicating level of compliance?  Are you looking for an explanation to accompany any or all of the check marks?

A.	Please see answer to #11.

	Appendix D
	166. 
	Q.     Appendix D Matrix No.1 Does the state desire Opex 3690’s or some large scanner like the IBML IT3 to do the scanning?

A.     Any option can be presented in RFP response.

	Appendix D
	167. 
	Q.     #12: Which of these document types are 8.5 x 11”? Which are 8.5” x 14”? Are any larger than these? During your peak processing period, what is your average and peak day volumes for each of these document sizes?

A.     Please see answer to #114 regarding Size; please see answer to #139 for Volumes.

	Appendix D
	168. 
	Q.	Item 13 on pages 44 & 45 give the time frames of processing peaks but not any qualitative measurements. Please advise peak processing requirements as follows: 
a. What are the peak volumes by tax form type for a:
i. peak day
ii. peak week
iii. peak month
b. What is the definition of medium and heavy volumes?
c. Item 13 indicates the need to meet processing requirements for the following – please assign actual volumes to these general categories:
i. Remittance Peaks: 
· Mid-month and end of month each month
· Quarterly estimated taxes (each quarter with busiest quarter being Q2)
· Annual Payments (busiest time is Q2)
· All remittance should be processed within 24 hours of receipt
ii. Tax document processing peaks:
· Mid-month (every month: medium volumes)
· Quarterly (each quarter: medium volumes)
· Annual: (WTH w/W2/1099 due Feb 28: heavy volume)
· Heaviest volumes are end of Q1 through Q2: specifically Feb1 through May31st 
· IIT returns requiring refund to be processed by end of May

A.	Please see answer to #139.

	Appendix D
	169. 
	Q.	Item 14 on page 45. Why does Montana desire to out sort payments if the payments are going to be electronically deposited?

A.	DOR does not currently process document and payment together; if document and payment are scanned together DOR assumes there is a need for separation of payment to complete remittance process.

	Appendix D
	170. 
	Q.	#29 Ability to identify records within a batch without separator sheets by (form id, 1-d , 2-d, form layout)
Currently it appears that no DOR tax forms include a 1D barcode. Is it DOR’s intention that forms that forms will be redesigned to include 1D barcodes in all cases? Will these be the 2010 tax forms?

A.	Barcodes are not currently used; DOR intends to work with vendor to determine barcodes at the time of forms re-design; RFP response should include options or solutions available.

	Appendix D
	171. 
	Q.	Item 41 page 46. Why does MT-DOR desire the “ability to retrieve a batch submitted for corrective actions for resubmission” if the process is transaction based and the deposits are electronic?

A.	Corrective action would most likely occur before the deposit is made. However, there is a possibility that an error is caught after deposit. Corrective action would still need to be taken on the associated form.

	Appendix D
	172. 
	Q.     Requirement #45 states “Receive images in bulk transfer”. 
a. Please explain this requirement. What is bulk transfer? 

A.     This would be groups or batches of images submitted via secure file transfer.

	Appendix D
	173. 
	Q.     Requirement #55 states “Ability to capture data from unstructured forms without a template”. 
a. Do you plan to use the use the solution to extract data from unstructured forms in addition to W2s and 1099s? 
b. If so, please share your vision of how unstructured documents will be incorporated into the solution. 

A.     Number 55 is an optional requirement; there are currently no definitive plans regarding scanning of unstructured documents.

	Appendix D
	174. 
	Q.	#57 Data Recognition
Must be able to index records by multiple fields (minimum ten fields) 
Do we need to provide and Archive solution?  If so, access to the data within the Archive is to be retrieved through GenTax?  If no, can we assume that we will be exporting the images and data to GenTax for archival purposes?

A.	Please see answer to #86.

	Appendix D
	175. 
	Q.     Requirement #64 states “Ability to read barcodes no matter the document orientation”. 
a. Will all barcodes have the same orientation as the document layout (horizontal) or do you expect to receive barcodes that are vertical in orientation? 

A.     DOR currently does not use barcodes and does not have a specific expectation of the barcode location.

	Appendix D
	176. 
	Q.	Item 92 on page 48, does the State desire a document management system like those referenced to be part of the solution or would it be considered optional?

A.	Number 92 is an optional requirement.

	Appendix D
	177. 
	Q.	#93 Ability to transfer files using State of Montana secure file transfer service-Epass
Please provide more details for the file transfer service – Epass.

A.	State secure file transfer service; see URL https://app.mt.gov/epass/epass for more information.

	Appendix D
	178. 
	Q.	Appendix D: Requirements Matrix -> Reporting->101 and 102
Please provide a detail on the required reports like is this report related to scanning or indexing etc. Please provide sample reports.

A.	DOR does not currently scan documents therefore cannot provide an example.

	Appendix D
	179. 
	Q.	#102 Reporting, Stats per job type
Question: What is DOR’s definition of a job?

A.	Tax form types.

	Appendix D
	180. 
	Q.	#104 Ability to provide online parameter-driven queries that provide users with information to facilitate daily operations. 
What is DORs definition of online parameter-driven queries?

A.	On-line system query with parameters; example: per hour, per day, per user.

	Appendix D
	181. 
	Q.	#106 The ability to store ad hoc report definitions in an online library. 
What is DORs definition of an online library to store ad hoc report definitions?

A.	Online library or electronic document storage either on scanning/imaging system or on state network.

	Appendix D
	182. 
	Q.	#137 Capacity must plan for a 20% a year growth for five years
Where will the 20% growth come from? New volume for existing taxes, new tax types, other non-tax volume?

A.	Growth over five years time will mainly be from new volumes of existing taxes; over time as more forms are scanned and more electronic options are available it is assumed the volume (growth) will be reduced.

	Appendix D
	183. 
	Q.	Item 148 on page 51. Indicates the maximum image size should be 400kb. Pictures, blueprints, architectural diagrams or maps may exceed 400kb if captured in grayscale or color. Will these special documents be accepted as exceptions to the 400kb maximum?

A.	Yes.

	Appendix D
	184. 
	Q.     Requirement #168 states “Must incorporate any site specific custom programming into the generally available product within nine months of implementation at the Department of Revenue.”. 
a. Please provide more detail on this requirement. Does the term „generally available product‟ refer to the core product? 
b. What is your expectation for custom code integration into the core product? 

A.     a. This is the expectation; 
b. DOR assumes this is regarding number 163, this is an optional requirement.
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